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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members

International Data Management Limited

The Board of Directors of the Company presents herewith 
ththe 47 Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of 

stthe Company for the financial year ended 31  March, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights of the financial results of the Company are as 
follows:

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Financial Financial 
Year Ended Year Ended 
March 31, March 31,
2024  2023

Total Income 0 0.06

Total Expenses 17.44 165.53

Profit/ (Loss) (17.44) (165.47)

Depreciation 0 0

Profit/ (Loss) Before (17.44) (165.47)
finance Cost

Finance Cost 0 0

Profit/ (Loss) Before (17.44) (165.47)
Exceptional Items

Exceptional items 0 0

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (17.44) (165.47)

Tax Expense 0.03 0

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (17.47) (165.47)

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S  AFFAIRS

During the year under review loss of Rs. 17.47 Lacs has been 

reported by the Company as against the loss of Rs. 165.47 

Lacs for the previous year.

No business could be undertaken due to paucity of working 

capital and other business constraints.

3. DIVIDEND

In view of the loss incurred during the year under review and 

past accumulated losses, the Board of Directors of the 

Company does not recommend any dividend for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024.

4. RESERVES & SURPLUS

In absence of profits during the year under review, no amount 

has been transferred to reserves.  

5. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 92(3) and134(3)(a) 

of the Companies Act, 2023 the Annual Return of the 

Company is available on the website of the Company at 

https://idmlimited.in/annual-return/

6. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the 
Company during the year under review. 

7. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During financial year 2023-24, the Board met 5 (Five) times 
on the below mentioned dates:

thI. 29  May, 2023

II. 10th August, 2023
thIII. 10  November, 2023

thIV. 8  December, 2023
thV. 12  February, 2024 

The gap between two Board meetings did not exceed one 
hundred and twenty days. The following table mentions the 
record of attendance at the Board Meetings:

Name of the Director No. of Board No. of Board
Meetings Meetings
held  attended

Mr. Sunil K Shrivastava 5 5

Mr. Sashi Sekhar Mishra 5 5

Ms. Rita Gupta 5 5

Mr. P S Ravishankar 5 5

Mr. Suresh Chand Sharma 5 5

8. HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT 
VENTURE COMPANIES

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the 
Company had no holding, subsidiary, associate or joint 
venture company. In view of this Form AOC-1 is not attached 
with the financial statements of the Company. The Company 
is an Associate Company of HCL Corporation Private 
Limited, as per the provisions of section 2(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

9. SHARE CAPITAL: There was no change in the share 
capital of the Company during the year under review.

a. Issue of equity shares with differential rights – NIL

b. Issue of sweat equity shares – NIL

c. Issue of employee stock option – NIL

d. Provision of moneys by company for purchase of its own 
shares - NIL

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  

As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

i. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the 
stfinancial year ended at 31  March, 2024; the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures, 
wherever applicable;

ii. appropriate accounting policies have been selected 
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and applied consistently and that the judgments and 
estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the loss of the 
Company for the said period;

iii. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

iv. in view of expected future business, the annual 
staccounts for the financial year ended on 31  March, 

2024 have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

v. the internal financial controls were followed by the 
Company and that internal financial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi. proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with 
the provision of all applicable laws and the systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.

11. SECRETARIAL STANDARD 

The Company complies with all applicable secretarial 
standards as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India.

12. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION

The Company has received the necessary declaration from 
each Independent Director in accordance with Section 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria 
of independence as laid out in sub-section (6) of Section 149 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

13. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANAYLSIS

Since the Company does not have any operations during the 
year under review, therefore there is no data to be reported 
under Management Discussion and Analysis as required in 
terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

14. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As per Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the provisions 
related to Corporate Governance are not applicable on the 
“Companies having paid up equity share capital not 
exceeding Rs. 10 crores and Net Worth not exceeding Rs. 25 
crores, as on the last day of the previous financial year”. 
Since the Company fulfils the criteria(s) as mentioned above, 
the Company is exempted from complying with the 
Corporate Governance provisions as envisaged under the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and therefore report on Corporate 
Governance for the year under review is not required to be 
enclosed along with this report.    

15. COMPENSATION POLICY FOR BOARD AND 
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Based on the recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board had approved the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP, 
Senior Management and other employees of the Company. 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is annexed to this 
report as Annexure 1.

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not given 
any loan, provided guarantees or made investments under 
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Company has not entered 
into any contract or arrangement with any related party 
attracting the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. In view of this Form AOC-2 is not attached with this 
report.

Further, there have been no materially significant related 
party transactions between the Company and the Directors, 
the management, the associate or the relatives except for 
those disclosed in the financial statements.

18. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

During the period between the close of the financial year of 
the Company to which the financial statements relate and the 
date of this report, there were no material changes and 
commitments that affects the financial position of the 
Company.

19. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Retirement by rotation: Pursuant to Section 149, 152 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013, one third of such of the directors as are liable to retire 
by rotation, shall retire at every Annual General Meeting. The 
retiring directors may offer themselves for re–appointment at 
every Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Sashi 
Sekhar Mishra, Director& Manager, shall retire by rotation at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment in accordance with the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

B. There was no change in the composition of the Board of 
the Company during the year under review.  

C. Formal Annual Evaluation: Pursuant to provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 the Board has carried out an 
evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually 
and the evaluation of the working of its Audit committee, 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee and Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee.

D. Key Managerial Personnel: During the year under 
review, there was no change in Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company.

International Data Management Limited
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20. COMMITTEES OF BOARD:

A. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee which was constituted on March 31, 
2015, was re-constituted on February 12, 2019. The 
Committee has adopted a Charter for its functioning. The 
primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and provide 
effective supervision of the Management’s financial 
reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely 
disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity 
and quality of financial reporting.

The Committee met 5 (Five) times during the Financial Year 
th th th2023-24 on29 May, 2023; 10 August, 2023; 10 November, 

th th2023; 8 December, 2023 and 12 February, 2024. As on the 
date of this report, the Committee is comprises of:

S. Name of Category Designation
No. Director

1 Mr. Suresh Chand Independent Chairman

Sharma Director

2 Mr. P S Independent Member
Ravishankar Director

3 Mr. Sunil Kumar Non-Independent Member
Shrivastava Director

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee which was 
constituted on March 31, 2015,was re-constituted on 
February 12, 2019. The Committee has adopted a Charter for 
its functioning. The primary objective of the Committee is to 
recommend suggestions to the Board of Directors pertaining 
to the Remuneration for Directors, KMP and all other 
employees of the Company.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Committee met on
th29  May, 2023 and 12th February 2024. As on the date of this 

report, the Committee comprises of:

S. Name of Category Designation
No. Director

1 Mr. Suresh Chand Independent Chairman

Sharma Director

2 Mr. P S Independent Member
Ravishankar Director

3 Mr. Sunil Kumar Non-Independent Member
Shrivastava Director

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is 

Annexed to this Report as Annexure 1.

C. Stakeholder Relationship Committee

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee which was 
constituted on March 31, 2015, was re-constituted on 
February 12, 2019.The Committee has adopted a Charter for 
its functioning. The primary objective of the Committee is to 
consider and resolve the grievances of Security Holders of 
the Company.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Committee met 4 
th th(four) times on29 May, 2023; 27  September, 2023; 

th th6 November, 2023 and 12 February, 2024. As on the date of 
this report, the Committee comprises of:

S. Name of Category Designation
No. Director

1 Mr. Suresh Chand Independent Chairman
Sharma Director

2 Mr. P S Independent Member
Ravishankar Director

3 Mr. Sunil Kumar Non-Independent Member
Shrivastava Director

D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was 
constituted on February 12, 2019. During the Financial Year 

th2023-24, the Committee met on 29  May, 2023. As on the 
date of this report, the Committee comprises of:

S. Name of Category Designation
No. Director

1 Mr. Suresh Chand Independent Chairman
Sharma Director

2 Mr. P S Independent Member
Ravishankar Director

3 Mr. Sunil Kumar Non-Independent Member
Shrivastava Director

A brief outline of the CSR Policy of the Company and other 
details as required in prescribed under Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 
2021are set out in Annexure 2 of this Report. 

21. Vigil Mechanism

The Board at its meeting held on March 31, 2015, approved 
the Vigil Mechanism that provides a formal mechanism for all 
Directors, employees and vendors of the Company to report 
genuine concerns or grievances about unethical behavior, 
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s 
Code of Conduct.

The Vigil mechanism provides a channel to the employees, 
Directors etc to report to the management concerns about 
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
the Code of Conduct or legal or regulatory requirements 
incorrect or misrepresentation of any financial statements 
and reports, etc. The Vigil Mechanism policy of the Company 
is available on the Company’s website at below link: 

No individual was denied access to the Audit Committee for 
reporting concerns, if any, during the year under review. 
Further, the Vigil Mechanism prescribes adequate safeguard 
against the victimization. 

During the year under review, no compliant was received 

The CSR Policy of the Company can be viewed at 
https://idmlimited.in/policies-2/

https://idmlimited.in/policies/

International Data Management Limited
th47  ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



4

from any Whistle Blower. 

22. Independent Director’s meeting

In compliance with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 
and regulation 25 (3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, a 
separate meeting of the independent directors was 

thconvened on 12  February, 2024.

Without the attendance of non-independent directors and 
members of management, inter alia, the independent 
directors discussed the following: 

i. Review the performance of non-independent directors 
and the board as a whole;

ii. Review the performance of the chairperson of the 
Company, taking into account the views of executive 
directors and non-executive directors;

iii. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 
information between the Company Management and 
the board that is necessary for the Board to effectively 
and reasonably perform their duties; and 

iv. Review the responsibility of independent directors with 
regards to internal financial controls.

23. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditors
thThe Members at the 45 Annual General Meeting of the 

thCompany held on 14  September, 2022, approved re-
appointment of M/s. Purushothaman Bhutani & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (FRN 005484N)as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the further term of five 

thyears i.e. from the conclusion of 45 Annual General Meeting 
thuntil the conclusion of 50 Annual General Meeting. M/s 

Purushothaman Bhutani & Co., Chartered Accountants 
resigned from the office of Statutory Auditor of the Company 

thvide letter dated 10 November, 2023 due to pre-occupation 
in other assignments. There was no other material reason for 
resignation of statutory auditor.

The Members of the Company vide resolution passed 
ththrough postal ballot process on 24 January, 2024 (the last 

date specified for remote e-voting) for which the voting 
thresults were declared on 25 January, 2024 approved the 

appointment of M/s. V. Nagarajan & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 004879N) to fill the 
casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors of the 
Company caused by resignation of M/s Purushothaman 
Bhutani & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 005484N) to 
hold the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company until the 
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.

The Auditors’ Report with notes to accounts are self-
explanatory and, therefore, do not call for further comments. 
The Audit Report does not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remarks.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the 
Board of Directors have considered, approved and 

recommended to the Members for their approval at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting, the appointment of M/s. V. 
Nagarajan & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration 
No. 004879N) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a 
period of 5 (Five) consecutive years from the conclusion of 

ththe 47 Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 
nd52 Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2029.  

Internal Auditors

The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, had appointed Mr. Ashish Mittal (M.No 
518891) a qualified Chartered Accountant as the Internal 
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. 

Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed M/s Rana& Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries (CP No. 22302) to conduct the 
secretarial audit for the financial year 2023-24 i.e. from 

st st1 April, 2023 to 31  March, 2024. The Secretarial Audit report 
is annexed herewith marked as Annexure 3 to this report. 
The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

Considering the nature of activities of your Company and fact 
that there has been no business in the Company during the 
year under review, there are no particulars to be furnished in 
respect of conservation of energy and technology 
absorption. There were no foreign exchange earning and 
outgo during the year under review. 

25. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year under review, there were no employees 
covered under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Due to paucity of 
resources, no remuneration was paid to managerial 
personnel & KMPs of the Company, during the year under 
review. In view of above, the statement of disclosure of 
Remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Act 
and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Rules, 2014 
(‘Rules’), is not applicable for the period under review.

26. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial 
controls commensurate with the volume of the transactions 
of the Company and are operating effectively. During the 
year under review, such controls were tested and no 
reportable material weakness was observed. 

27. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Company has laid down Risk Management Policy to 
inform Board Members about the risk assessment and 

International Data Management Limited
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minimization procedures.

28. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY 
AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 
OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO 
THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of 
fraud by the officers or employees of the Company for the 
financial year under review.

29. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
stAs on 31  March, 2024, neither the Company has not 

accepted any public deposit nor there is any unclaimed 
deposit. Further, there is no amount of principal or interest 
outstanding on public deposit as on the date of Balance 
Sheet

30. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL  

There were no significant material orders passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact the 
going concern status of the Company and its future 
operations.

31. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

In view of number of employees being less than prescribed 
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 Internal 
Complaints Committee under the said Act is not required to 
be constituted. Further, no compliant regarding sexual 
harassment was received during the year under review and 
no compliant was outstanding.

32. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of cost records as specified by Central 
Government under Section 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013 
isnot applicable to the Company.

33. OTHER DISCLOSURES

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is 
required in respect of the following items, for the year under 
review:

a) No application has been admitted against the Company 
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

b) There was no instance of one-time settlement with any 
bank or financial institution.

c) The Company does not have any subsidiary Company, 
therefore providing detai ls of  payment of  
remuneration/commission to executive directors from 
subsidiary companies is not applicable.

d) As on date of this report no employee stock option plan 
of the Company exists and accordingly no stock options 
have been granted by the Company till date.

e) There was no instance of issue of equity shares with 
differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise and 
Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
employees. 

f) There were no unclaimed and unpaid dividends amount 
/ the corresponding shares which were due to be 
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
during the financial year 2023-24.

g) The Company does not have any scheme of provision of 
money for the purchase of its own shares by employees 
or by trustees for the benefit of employees.

h) The equity shares of the Company are listed at the BSE 
Limited (Scrip Code 517044). The Company has paid 
the annual listing fee for the financial year 2024-25 to 
BSE Limited.

i) During the year under review, the Company did not 
obtain any credit rating.

j) There was no buy-back of shares under Section 67(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

34. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Directors wish to record their appreciation to the 
Government authorities, Bankers and Shareholders for their 
co-operation and unstinted support extended to the 
Company during the year under review. 

By order of the Board
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Sunil K Shrivastava

Director
DIN: 00259961

Address: S-1/730,Sector-5, Vaishali,
Ghaziabad -201012

Sd/-
Sashi Sekhar Mishra
Director & Manager

DIN: 03072330
Address: YB-355, Lane No. 16, Pocket-6

NTPC Anandam Society,
Greater Noida (UP) - 201308

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12 August, 2024
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Introduction

The Board of Directors of International Data 
Management Limited constituted the “Nomination and 

stRemuneration Committee” on 31  March, 2015& re-
constituted on February 12, 2019 consisting of three 
Non- Executive Directors of which majority is of 
Independent Directors.

1. Committee Objective:

The Committee is constituted by and 
accountable to the Board of Directors of 
International Data Management Limited. The 
primary objectives of the committee would be:

1.1. To guide or recommend the Board in relation to 
appointment and removal of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 

1.2. To evaluate the performance of the members of 
the Board and provide necessary report to the 
Board for further evaluation of the Board.

1.3. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration 
payable to the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management.

1.4. To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management reward linked directly to 
their effort, performance, dedication and 
achievement relating to the Company’s 
operations. 

1.5. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to 
ensure long term sustainability of talented 
managerial persons and create competitive 
advantage. 

1.6. To devise a policy on Board diversity 

1.7. To develop a succession plan for the Board and 
to regularly review the plan;

2. Role of Committee

The committee shall:

2.1.1. formulates the criteria for determining 
qual i f icat ions, posit ive attr ibutes and 
independence of a director;

2.1.2. identify persons who are qualified to become 
directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management;

2.1.3. recommend to the board relating to appointment, 
removal or remuneration of directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees.   

3. Composition

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
consist of three Non- Executive Directors majority 
of which are Independent Directors.

4. Frequency of the Meeting

The committee shall meet as many times as the 
committee deems necessary to carry out its duties 
effectively.

Notice of every meeting will be given to every 
member of the Committee.

5. Quorum 

The presence of any two members of the 
committee is necessary to form the quorum for the 
meeting. 

6. Decision considers by the Board but is not 
binding

The decision for appointment or removal of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management is to be considered by the Board. 
The committee will only recommend to the Board 
the candidature of the suitable personnel in the 
office as required from time to time. The Board is at 
its discretion to accept the recommendations 
made to them.

7. Review of Policy

This Policy will be reviewed and reassessed by the 
Committee as and when required and appropriate 
recommendations shall be made to the Board to 
update this Policy based on changes that may be 
brought about due to any regulatory amendments 
or otherwise.

8. Disclosure

As per Companies Act, 2013 the Board have to 
make disclosures of appointment and removal and 
managerial remuneration of Directors, key 
managerial personnel and senior management in 
the Board Report to its shareholders.

Annexure 1

INTERNATIONAL DATA MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE POLICY

International Data Management Limited
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Annexure 2

Annual Report of International Data Management Limited on the 

Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

International Data Management Limited
th47  ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

1.  Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:

The objective of CSR policy is to lay down guiding principles for selection, implementation and monitoring of CSR activities 

as well as the formulation of the Annual Action Plan, for ensuring growth and advancement of society. The CSR activities, 

projects and programmes undertaken by the Company shall be those as recommended by the CSR Committee and are 

covered under the areas or subject, set out in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. In accordance with the Companies 

Act, 2013 the Company shall commit 2% of average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately 

preceding financial years towards CSR initiatives. The Company shall carry on its CSR activities through public charitable 

trusts registered/ any other registered trust/ any registered society/ any other company or by company directly registered 

with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, and under Sections 12A 

and 80G of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

Sl. Name of Director Designation /Nature Number of meetings Number of meetings 
No. of Directorship of CSR Committee of CSR Committee 

held during the year attended during
the year

1. Mr. Suresh Chand Sharma Independent Director 1 (One) 1 (One)
& Chairman 

2. Mr. P S Ravishankar Independent Director 1 (One) 1 (One)
& Member

3. Mr. Sunil Kumar Shrivastava Non- Independent 1 (One) 1 (One)
Director & Member

3. ‘Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are 

disclosed on the website of the company: 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of 
sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135  - NIL

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135(5) - NIL

( c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years:   NIL

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)} - NIL

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Project (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): NIL

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads  -  NIL

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable  - Not Applicable 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+( c)]  -NIL

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Spent Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
for the Financial
Year. (in Rs.) Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified 

Unspent CSR Account as per under Schedule VII as per second proviso 
section 135(6). to section 135(5).

Amount. Date of Name of Amount. Date of 
transfer. the Fund transfer.

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

https://idmlimited.in/policies/
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(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 NIL

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] NIL

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous Financial Years, if any NIL

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] NIL

7.   Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the 
Financial Year: No 

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in 
the Financial Year:

**(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ 
Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries).

International Data Management Limited
th47  ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. Preceding Amount transferred Balance Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount remaining Deficiency, if any
No Financial  to Unspent CSR  in Unspent CSR Spent in Fund specified under to be spent in 

 Year(s) Account under Account under the Schedule VII as per Section succeeding
Section 135(6) section in the Financial 135(6), if any. financial years. 

(in Rs.)  reporting Financial Year 
Year (in Rs.) (in Rs)   

Amount Date of 
(in Rs.) Transfer

1 2020-21 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

2 2021-22 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

3 2022-23 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

SI Short particulars of the Pincode of the Date of Amount of CSR Details of entity/ 
No. property or asset(s) property or Creation amount spent Authority/beneficiary

[including complete address asset(s)  of the registered owner
and location of

the property

NA CSR Name Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable

Nil  
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9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection (5) 
of section 135: Not Applicable

Sd/- Sd/-

Suresh Chand Sharma Sunil Kumar Shrivastava

Chairperson of CSR Committee  Non Independent Director & Member

DIN- 02435235 DIN- 00259961

Place: New Delhi 
thDate: 12  August, 2024

International Data Management Limited
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To,
The Members,
International Data Management Limited
(CIN: L72300DL1977PLC008782)
806, Siddhartha 96, Nehru Place,
New Delhi - 110019

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices of International Data Management 
Limited (CIN: L72300DL1977PLC008782) (hereinafter 

stcalled The Company) for the year ended 31  March 2024. 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us 
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information and 
representations provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 

styear ended on 31  March 2024, complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records made available to us and 

stmaintained by Company for the financial year ended on 31  
March 2024 according to the provisions of:

(a) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
there under.

(b) The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 
(SCRA) and the rules made there under;

(c) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-
laws framed there under; 

(d) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made there under to the extent of foreign 
direct investment, overseas direct investment and 
external commercial borrowing; 

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015; 

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011; 

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 

(j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

(k) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference 
Shares) Regulations,2013;

(l) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and 
general meetings.

During the period under review the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Director and Non-Executive 
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors/Committees that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of 
the Act. 

Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting in compliance of the Act.

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously 
and there is no dissent from directors during the audit period.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

FOR RANA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-

Date: 12.08.2024 NISHANT RANA
Place: New Delhi (Proprietor)

Membership No: F10333
C.P.: 22302

UDIN: F010333F000952274

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

STFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2024
(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

International Data Management Limited
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TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL DATA 
MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the IND AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial statements of 
International Data Management Limited (“the Company”), 

st which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March, 2024, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the statement of changes in equity, Cash flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS 
financial statements, including a summary of the material 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS Financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid  
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 

st the Company as at 31 March, 2024, and its loss, total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of financial statement in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

The Company has significant accumulated losses and has 
incurred losses of Rs. 17.47 lakhs during the current year and 
Rs. 165.47 lakhs in previous year. The Company’s net worth 
is fully eroded and the current liabilities exceed its current 
assets by Rs. 410.91 lakhs as at March 31, 2024. These 
conditions raise a doubt regarding the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. However, the financial 
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in 
view of the financial support from the Promoter Group to 
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. Except for the matter described in 
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we 
have determined that there are no other key audit matters to 
communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including 
Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other 
information that we obtained prior to the date of auditor’s 
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

International Data Management Limited
th47  ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



12

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial 
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management and 
Board of directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
31st March, 2023, prepared in accordance with Ind AS have 
been audited by the predecessor auditors. The report of the 
predecessor auditors dated 29th May, 2023, expressed an 
unmodified opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and 
records of the Company as we considered appropriate 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us and the representation obtained from the 
management, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement 
on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
said Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow 
statement dealt with by this report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

International Data Management Limited
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(e) On the basis of written representations received 
st from the directors as on 31 March, 2024 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
st directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2024 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure 
B”.

(g) The Company has not paid or provided for any 
managerial remuneration during the year. 
Accordingly, reporting under section 197 (16) of the 
Act is not applicable.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending 
litigations which would impact its financial 
position; 

ii) The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts, for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

iii) There were no amounts, which were required 
to be transferred during the year to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

iv)  (a) The management has represented to us 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the company 
to or in any other person(s) or entity (ies), 
i n c l u d i n g  f o r e i g n  e n t i t i e s  
( “ I n t e r m e d i a r i e s ” ) ,  w i t h  t h e  
understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has also represented to 
us, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received by the 
company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities 
( “ F u n d i n g  P a r t i e s ” ) ,  w i t h  t h e  
understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we 
considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come 
to our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations under sub-clause 
(a) and (b) contain any material mis-
statement.

v) No dividend declared or paid during the year 
by the company.

3. Based on our examination which included test checks, 
the company has used an accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has 
operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during 
the course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 
Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the 
company as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention.

For V Nagarajan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 004879N 

Sd/-

Pradeep Kumar 
Partner

Place: New Delhi M.No. 514068
Date: 27th May 2024 UDIN: 24514068BKCAUI9648 

“Annexure A” referred to in the Independent Auditors’ 
report to the shareholders of International Data 
Management Limited on the accounts for the year ended 
31st March, 2024.

To the best of our information, according to the explanations 
provided to us the company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we 
state that :

I. In respect of its Property Plant and Equipment:

a) (A) The Company does not have any property, 
plant and equipment accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(i)(a)(A) of the Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to 
the Company.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible 
assets and accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.

b) The property, plant and equipment have been 
physically verified by the management during the 
year and no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of 

International Data Management Limited
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physical verification program adopted by the 
Company, is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its assets 

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties 
(including investment properties) held by the 
Company (other than properties where the 
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements 
are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in 
the name of the Company. 

d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant 
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or 
intangible assets or both during the year.

e) Based on the audit procedure performed and the 
representation obtained from the management, no    
proceedings have been initiated or are pending 
against the company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder.

ii. a) The Company does not hold any inventory. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

 b) The Company has not been sanctioned working 
capital limits by banks or financial institutions on 
the basis of security of current assets during any 
point of time of the year. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company

iii. The Company has not made investment, provided any 
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other 
parties. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) to 
3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us and the representation 
obtained from the management (i) the Company has not 
granted any loans to any of its directors or any other 
person to whom director is interested or given 
guarantee or provided any security in connection with 
any loan taken by him or such other person within the 
meaning of section 185 of the Act and (ii) the Company 
has not given any loan, given any guarantee or provided 
any security and acquired securities within the meaning 
of section 186 of the Act. 

v. In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has 
been considered as deemed deposit within the 
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
Company’s activities. Hence, reporting under clause 
(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii.    a) In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory 
dues including goods and services tax, provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, 
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been 
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities 
by the Company, though there have been slight 
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect thereof were 
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became 
payable.

b) There are no disputed statutory dues referred to in 
clause (a) above which have remained unpaid as 

ston 31  March, 2024. 

viii There were no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961).

ix a) On the basis of the verification of records and 
information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 
or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender. 

b) The Company has not been declared willful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority;

c) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has taken term loans 
during the year. Further, term loans were applied for 
the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, funds raised on short 
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during 
the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company does not have any 
subsidiaries, associate or joint venture within the 
meaning of Companies Act, 2013. Hence, 
reporting under clause 3(ix) (e) and clause 3(ix)(f) 
of the Order is not applicable.

x (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year and hence 
reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or 
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi a) Based on the audit procedure performed and the 
representation obtained from the management, we 
report that no case of fraud by the Company or on 
the Company has been noticed or reported during 
the year under audit.
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b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been 
filed with the Central Government for the period 
covered by our audit.

c) According to the information and explanations 
given to us including the representation made to us 
by the management of the Company, there are no 
whistle-blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year.

xii The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not 
applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by 
the Company with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. 
Further, the details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements, as 
required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, 
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act).

xiv (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate 
internal audit system as required under section 138 
of the Act commensurate with the size and the 
nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for 
the year under audit, issued to the Company during 
the year and till date, in determining the nature, 
timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to 
us and the representation obtained from the 
management, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Therefore, the provisions of section 
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion, there is no core investment 
company within the Group (as defined in the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to 
Rs. 17.47 lakhs during the current financial year covered 
by our audit and the Rs. 165.53 In the immediately 
preceding financial year

xviii.There has been resignation of the statutory auditors 
during the year and based on the information   and  
explanations given to us by the management and the 
response to our communication with the outgoing 
auditors, there have been no issues, objections or 
concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

xix On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 

Directors and management plans, and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx  According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company does not fulfill the criteria as specified 
under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi The Company is not required to prepare consolidated 
financial statements and accordingly clause 3(xxi) of the 
Order is not applicable.

For V Nagarajan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 004879N 

Sd/-

Pradeep Kumar 
Partner

Place: New Delhi M.No. 514068
Date: 27th May 2024 UDIN: 24514068BKCAUI9648 

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ report on the 
Financial statements of International Data Management 

stLimited for the year ended 31  March, 2024.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to 
the aforesaid financial statements under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2024 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls were 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
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Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and issued by ICAI. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued 
by the ICAI.

For V Nagarajan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 004879N 

Sd/-

Pradeep Kumar 
Partner

Place: New Delhi M.No. 514068
Date: 27th May 2024 UDIN: 24514068BKCAUI9648 
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(All amount in ` lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Notes (in Rs.) (in Rs.)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  -    0.59 
Financial assets

Other financial assets 4  -    3.38 

Total non-current assets  -    3.97 

Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5  11.41  2.85 
Other current assets 6  -    0.12 

Total current assets  11.41  2.97 

Total assets  11.41  6.94 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital 7  220.00  220.00 
Other equity 8  (630.91)  (613.44)

Total equity  (410.91)  (393.44)

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 9  419.55  399.55 
Trade payables 10
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises  1.50  0.55 
Other current liabilities 11  1.27  0.28 

Total current liabilities  422.32  400.38 

Total liabilities  422.32  400.38 

Total equity and liabilities  11.41  6.94 

Summary of material accounting policies 1-2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 3-23

As per our report of even date attached

For V Nagarajan & Co. For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants International Data Management Limited
Firm Registration No. 004879N

Pradeep Kumar Sunil Kumar Shrivastava Sashi Sekhar Mishra
Partner Director Manager & Director
Membership No 514068 DIN:00259961 DIN:03072330

Place: New Delhi Pradeep Tahiliani Bina Bhatia
Date: 27 May 2024 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Chief Financial Officer
UDIN : 24514068BKCAUI9648 Membership No.ACS18570 PAN:BDYPB0279A

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31 March 2024
(All amount in ` lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended

Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Income

Other Income 12  -    0.06 

Total Income  -    0.06 

Expenses

Other expenses 13  17.44  165.53 

Total expenses  17.44  165.53 

Proft / (loss) before exceptional items and tax  (17.44)  (165.47)

Exceptional Items  -    -   

Profit(loss) before before tax  (17.44)  (165.47)

Tax expense:

(1) Current year  -    -   

(2) Earlier years  0.03  -   

Net loss for the year (a)  (17.47)  (165.47)

Other comprehensive income  -    -   

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (b)  -    -   

Total comprehensive loss for the year (c) = (a) +(b)  (17.47)  (165.47)

Earnings per equity share:

Basic earning per share 14  (0.79)  (7.52)

Diluted earning per share  (0.79)  (7.52)

Summary of material accounting policies 1-2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 3-23

As per our report of even date attached

For V Nagarajan & Co. For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants International Data Management Limited
Firm Registration No. 004879N

Pradeep Kumar Sunil Kumar Shrivastava Sashi Sekhar Mishra
Partner Director Manager & Director
Membership No 514068 DIN:00259961 DIN:03072330

Place: New Delhi Pradeep Tahiliani Bina Bhatia
Date: 27 May 2024 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Chief Financial Officer
UDIN : 24514068BKCAUI9648 Membership No.ACS18570 PAN:BDYPB0279A

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024

International Data Management Limited
th47  ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



19

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in ` lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

(A) Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit/ (loss) before tax  (17.44)  (165.47)

Adjustments for:

Advance tax  written off  -    156.83 

Provision for dimunition in assets  3.97 

Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes  (13.46) (8.64)

Movement in working capital

Increase in other current assets  0.12  -   

Increase in other non-current assets  -   

(Decrease)/Increase in trade payable  0.95  (1.93)

Decrease in other current liability  0.99  (0.10)

Cash flow from operating activities post working capital changes  (11.41)  (10.67)

Income tax paid (net)  (0.03)  -   

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  (11.44) (10.67)

 (B) Cash flows from investing activities    

Interest on FD  -    -   

Net cash flows used in investing activities (B)  -    -   

 (C) Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from borrowings  20.00 12.00 

Net cash used in financing activities ( C)  20.00 12.00 

Total (A) + (B) + (C)  8.56 1.33 

Opening balance of cash & cash equivalents  2.85 1.52 

Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents  11.41 2.85 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  8.56 1.33

Note: The above statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per report of even date attached

For V Nagarajan & Co. For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants International Data Management Limited
Firm Registration No. 004879N

Pradeep Kumar Sunil Kumar Shrivastava Sashi Sekhar Mishra
Partner Director Manager & Director
Membership No 514068 DIN:00259961 DIN:03072330

Place: New Delhi Pradeep Tahiliani Bina Bhatia
Date: 27 May 2024 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Chief Financial Officer
UDIN : 24514068BKCAUI9648 Membership No.ACS18570 PAN:BDYPB0279A

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in ` lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital Amount

Balance as at 01 April 2023 220.00 

Changes in equity share capital during the year -   

Balance as at 31 March 2024 220.00 

B Other equity
  

Capital Securities Capital Retained Total
redemption premium reserve earnings

reserve reserve  

Balance as at  6.00  17.60  345.54  (982.58)  (613.44)
01 April 2023

Profit/ (loss) for the year  -    -    -    (17.47)  (17.47)

Balance as at  6.00  17.60  345.54  (1,000.05)  (630.91)
31 March 2024

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For V Nagarajan & Co. For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants International Data Management Limited
Firm Registration No. 004879N

Pradeep Kumar Sunil Kumar Shrivastava Sashi Sekhar Mishra
Partner Director Manager & Director
Membership No 514068 DIN:00259961 DIN:03072330

Place: New Delhi Pradeep Tahiliani Bina Bhatia
Date: 27 May 2024 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Chief Financial Officer
UDIN : 24514068BKCAUI9648 Membership No.ACS18570 PAN:BDYPB0279A

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. General information

International Data Management Limited (“the Company”) is 
a public limited company incorporated under the provisions 
of Companies Act, 2013. The Company is domiciled in India 
with its registered office situated at 806, Siddhartha, 96, 
Nehru Place, New Delhi – 110019, India. The Company’s 
shares are listed with BSE Limited. The Company’s primary 
line of business had been manufacturing of computers and 
related peripherals.

2.1 Basis of preparation 

A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended from time to time). 

The financial statements were approved by the 
Company’s Board of Directors on 27 May 2024.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are 
included in Note 2.2.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian 
Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company’s functional 
currency.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the 
historical cost basis except for certain financial assets 
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value. 

D. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with Ind AS requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affects the 
application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. 
Although these estimates are based on the 
management’s best knowledge of current events and 
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
or liabilities in future periods. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Any revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized prospectively in current and 
future periods.

E. Current and non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the 
balance sheet based on current / non-current 
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies 
any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for 
sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal 
operating cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after 
the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted 
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least 12 months after the report date

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies 
any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s 
normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the 
reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability 
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result 
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments 
do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-
current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other 
assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are classified 
as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time 
between the acquisition of assets for processing and 
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 
twelve months for the purpose of current/non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

a) Financial instruments 

i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are 
initially recognised when they are originated. All 
other financial assets and financial liabilities are 
initially recognised when the Company becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. A financial asset or financial liability is 
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not 
at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

     Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified 
as measured at:

• amortised cost;

• fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI)-debt investment;

• fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI)-equity investment; or

• FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified 
subsequent to their initial recognition, except 
if and in the period the Company changes its 
business model for managing financial 
assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised 
cost if it meets both of the following 
conditions and is not designated as 
FTVPL:

• the asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
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contractual cash flows, and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it 
meets both of the following conditions and is 
not designated as FVTPL:

• the asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets, and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as 
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as 
described above are measured at FVTPL. 
On initial recognition, the Company may 
irrevocably designate a financial asset that 
otherwise meets the requirements to be 
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as 
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or 
significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial asset: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the 
objective of the business model in which a 
financial asset is held at a portfolio level because 
this best reflects the way the business is 
managed and information is provided to 
management, for instance the stated policies and 
objectives for the portfolio, frequency, volume and 
timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, 
the reasons for such sales and expectations 
about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in 
transactions that do not qualify for derecognition 
are not considered sales for this purpose, 
consistent with the Company’s continuing 
recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are 
managed and whose performance is evaluated 
on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether 
contractual cash flows are solely payments of 
principal and Interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is 
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as 
consideration for the time value of money and for 
the credit risk associated with the principal 
amount outstanding during a particular period of 
time and for other basic lending risks and costs 
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as 
well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows 
are solely payments of principal and interest, the 
Company considers the contractual terms of the 
instrument. This includes assessing whether the 
financial asset contains a contractual term that 
could change the timing or amount of contractual 
cash flows such that it would not meet this 

condition. In making this assessment, the 
Company considers:

• contingent events that would change the 
amount or timing of cash flows;

• terms that may adjust the contractual coupon 
rates including variable interest rate features 
and

• prepayment and extension features.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement 
and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair 
value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest or dividend income, are recognised in 
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortised cost is reduced by 
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on 
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair 
value. Interest income under the effective interest 
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other 
net gains and losses recognised in OCI. On 
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in 
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair 
value. Dividends are recognised as income in 
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly 
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the 
investment. Other net gains and losses are 
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit 
or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent 
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at 
amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as 
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at 
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains 
and losses, including any interest expense, are 
recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Interest expense and foreign 
exchange gains and losses are recognised in 
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights 
to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially of the risks and 
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rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred or in which the Company neither 
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership and does not retain 
control of the financial asset. If the Company 
enters into transactions whereby it transfers 
assets recognised on its balance sheet, but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred 
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability 
when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled, or expire. The Company also 
derecognises a financial liability when its terms 
are modified and the cash flows under the 
modified terms are substantially different. In this 
case, a new financial liability based on the 
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability extinguished and the new 
financial liability with modified terms is recognised 
in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount presented in the balance 
sheet when, and only when, the Company 
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off 
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on 
a net basis or to the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

b)  Intangible asset under development

Costs incurred on development of intangible assets are 
classified as intangible assets under development.

 c) Impairment

I. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for 
expected credit losses on financial assets 
measured at  amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses 
whether financial assets carried at amortised cost 
and debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. 
A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or 
more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
have occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an 
amount equal to life time expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime 
expected credit  losses. Lifetime expected credit 
losses are the expected credit losses that result 
from al l possible default events over the expected 
life of a financial instrument. 

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of 
expected credit losses that result from default 
events that are possible within 12 months after 
the reporting date (or a shorter period if the 
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 
months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered 
when estimating expected credit losses is the 
maximum contractual period over which the 

Company is exposed to credit risk.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a 
financial asset has increased significantly if it is 
more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in 
default when:

• the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit 
obligations to the Company in full, without 
recourse by

• the Company to actions such as realising 
security (if any is held); or the financial asset 
is 90 days or more past due

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date if there is any indication of 
impairment based on internal/external factors. An 
impairment loss is recognized wherever the 
carrying amount of an asset (or cash generating 
unit) exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s 
(or cash generating unit’s) net selling price and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and risks specific to the asset 
(or cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised. The carrying amounts 
of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if 
there is any indication of impairment based on 
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is 
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an 
asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 
the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating 
unit’s) net selling price and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and risks 
specific to the asset (or cash generating unit) . An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is 
made at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is an indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or 
have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s 
recoverable amount. A previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the assumptions used to determine 
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is 
limited so that the carrying of the asset does not 
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the 
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carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the 
reversal is treated as an increase in revaluation. 

d) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, 
the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are 
determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows (representing the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at 
the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the liability. The 
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance 
cost. Expected future operating losses are not 
provided for. Provisions are reviewed by the 
management at each reporting date and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimates.

e) Contingent liabilities

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises 
from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events beyond the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised 
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation, or a present 
obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. 
The Company does not recognize a contingent liability 
but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

f) Income taxes 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is 
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it 
relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in 
other comprehensive income.

I. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable 
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or 
receivable in respect of previous years. The 
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of 
the tax amount expected to be paid or received 
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to 
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and 
tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are 
offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to 
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended 
to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net 
basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the corresponding amounts used 
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also 
recognised in respect of carried forward tax 
losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not 
recognised for:

• temporary differences arising on the initial 
recognition of assets or liabilities in a 
transaction that is not a business 
combination and that affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the 
time of the transaction; 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which they 
can be used.  Deferred tax assets – 
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are recognised/ 
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no 
longer probable respectively that the related 
tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to apply to the period when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, 
based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the 
tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Group expects, at the 
reporting date, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax liabilities and assets, and they 
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 
authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle 
current tax liabilities and assets on a net 
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be 
realised simultaneously.

g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet 
comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months 
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts as 
same form an integral part of Company’s cash 
management for the purpose of preparing of cash flow 
statements.

h) Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per equity share and also the weighted 
average number of equity shares that could have been 
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

i) Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new 
standard or amendments to the existing standards 
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 
31 March 2024,  MCA has not notified any new 
standards or amendments to the existing standards 
applicable to the Company.
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Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amount in ` lakhs unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment  

Description  Freehold land  Total

Gross carrying value

As at 01 April 2022 0.59 0.59 

Additions - -

Disposals - -

As at 31 March 2023 0.59 0.59 

Additions - -

Disposals - -

Less: Provision made during the year (0.59) -

As at 31 March 2024 0.00 0.00

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2022 - -

Charge for the year - -

As at 31 March 2023 - -

Charge for the year - -

As at 31 March 2024 - -

Net block as at 31 March 2023                                       0.59 0.59 

Net block as at 31 March 2024                                       NIL NIL

4. Other Financial Assets As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits                   3.38                    3.38 

Less: Provision made during the year                  (3.38)                       -   

                     -                      3.38 

5. Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Balances with banks

-on current accounts                  11.41                    2.85 

                 11.41                    2.85 

6. Other current assets As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Advances to supplier                      -                      0.12 

                     -                      0.12 
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7. Equity share capital As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Authorised capital

75,000 (Previous Year : 75,000)
13% Redeemable cumulative preference shares of ` 10 each 7.50 7.50
10,925,000 (Previous year : 10,925,000)
Equity shares of ` 10 each 1,092.50 1,092.50 

1,100.00 1,100.00

Issued, subscribed capital and fully paid up

2,200,000 (Previous year : 2,200,000)
Equity shares of ` 10 each 220.00                   220.00

220.00                   220.00

Of the above,
(I)  8,50,170 shares were issued as fully paid bonus shares by capitalisation of reserves, and
(ii) 4,40,000  shares were issued on part conversion of debentures

(i) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

No. in lakhs (` in lakhs) No. in lakhs (` in lakhs)

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  22.00  220.00  22.00  220.00 

Shares issued during the period - - - -

Shares bought back during the period  -                  -                           - -

Equity shares at the end of the year  22.00  220.00  22.00  220.00 

(ii) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the company , after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders.

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding

Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up

HCL Corporation Private Limited
Investing party (to which the Company 490,125 22.28  490,125  22.28 
is an associate)

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders 
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
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(iv) Shares held by the promoter at the end of the year

Sl No. Promoter Name No of shares % of total % change during
shares the year

1 HCL Corporation Private Limited 4,90,125 22.28 NIL

2 Apollo Trading & Finance Pvt. Ltd. 38,220 1.74 NIL

3 Viren Investments Pvt Ltd 16,250 0.74 NIL

4 Vireet Investments Pvt Ltd 11,250 0.51 NIL

5 Molly Trading Co Pvt Ltd - - Refer Note*

5,55,845 25.27

*Note-Pursuant to an order passed by Hon’ble NCLT, Delhi Bench, Molly Trading Company Private Limited holding 1,200 shares 
was amalgamated with an existing shareholder forming part of ‘Public Shareholders’ category of the Company.

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

8 Other equity

Capital redemption reserve 6.00 6.00 

Capital reserve 345.54 345.54 

Securities premium reserve 17.60 17.60

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

As per last balance sheet (982.58) (817.11)

Add: Net profit/ (loss) for the year (17.47) (165.47)

Closing balance (1,000.05) (982.58)

(630.91) (613.44)

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Capital reserve
This reserve represents the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid at the time of amalgamation 
done previously. This reserve is not available for the distribution to the shareholders.

Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act.
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As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

9. Borrowings

 Loan from related party (refer note 16)* 419.55 399.55 

419.55 399.55 
Notes:
* As per the terms of the contract, the loan is interest-free and is repayable within twelve months from the date of
sanction or is repayable on demand.

10. Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.14 -

-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
 and small enterprises          1.36 0.55

1.50 0.55

(i) Dues to micro and small enterprises pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium  Enterprises 
Development Act (MSMED), 2006

On the basis of confirmation obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act ,2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and based on the information available with the
company, the following are the details:

Principal amount remaining unpaid  0.14 Nil 

Interest accrued and due thereon remaining unpaid Nil Nil 

Interest paid by the company in terms of service 16 of MSMED Act 2006, along
with the amount of the payment made to the suppliers and service providers
beyond the appointed day during the year.

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment Nil Nil 
(which has been paid  but beyond the appointed day during the year ),
but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act ,2006.

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at the end of the year Nil Nil

Further interest remaining due  and payable even in the succeeding years, Nil Nil 
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the MSMED Act,2006. 

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2024

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year  > 3 year        Total 

(I) MSME 0.14 - - - 0.14 

(ii) Others 0.71 0.65 - - 1.36

(iii) Disputed dues — MSME  -    -    -    -    -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -

Total 0.85 0.65 - - 1.50 

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2023

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year  > 3 year        Total 

(I) MSME  -    -    -    -    -

(ii) Others 0.15  - 0.38 0.02 0.55

(iii) Disputed dues — MSME  -    -    -    -    -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -

Total 0.15  - 0.38 0.02 0.55
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As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

11 Other current liabilities

Statutory Dues    0.19 0.02

Provision for Expenses 1.08 0.26

 1.27                       0.28 

12 Other Income

Liabilities written back  -   0.06

 -                         0.06

13. Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)  

Legal and professional fees                                    5.17 3.75
Listing fees                                    3.83 3.54 
Auditor’s remunaration                                    1.00 0.26 
Advertising & Publication                                    0.60 0.65 
Advance income tax written off                                       -  156.83 
Communication Expense                                    0.03 -   
Membership Expense                                    0.06 -   
Printing & Stationery                                    1.89 -   
Interest Expense                                    0.05 -   
Miscellaneous expenses                                    0.83 0.50 
Provision for dimunition of assets                                    3.98 -   

17.44 165.53 

Payment to auditor
As auditor :
Audit fee 1.00 0.26 
Reimbursement of expenses - -

1.00 0.26

14. Earnings per share For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)  

Earning

Net profit(loss) attributable to equity shareholder (basic and diluted)   (17.47) (165.47)

Shares

Weighted average number of equity shares (basic and diluted)   2,200,000 2,200,000

Nominal value of each equity share (`)  10.00 10.00 

Earning per share (basic and diluted) (`)    (0.79) (7.52)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)  

15. Deferred tax

Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

Income tax -current year - -

Income tax -earlier year - -

- -
The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation
of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of at 25.08% and
the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:
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Particulars

Profit/ (loss) before tax (17.44) (165.47)

Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate * 25.08% 27.82%

Expected tax expense [A] - -

Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense

Difference in property, plant and equipment as per books and Income Tax Act, 1961 - -

Previously unrecognised tax losses now recouped to reduce current tax expense - -

Deferred tax not created on unabsorbed losses - -

Total adjustments [B] - -

Actual tax expense [C=A+B] - -

*Domestic tax rate applicable to the Company has been computed as follows 

Base tax rate 22% 25%

Surcharge (% of tax) 10% 7%

Cess (% of tax) 4% 4%

Applicable rate 25.08% 27.82%

Note

(i) Unrecognised deferred tax assets :

As of 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023, The Company has not recognised deferred tax asset on unused tax 
losses in absence of reasonable certainty and availability of sufficient future taxable profits against which such unused 
tax losses shall be utilized..

16 Related party diclosures

Name of related parties and related party relationship

Investing party (to which the Company is an associate) HCL Corporation Private Limited

Key Management Personnel Ms. Rita Gupta Director
Mr. P.S. Ravishankar Director
Mr. Suresh Chand Sharma Director
Mr. Sashi Sekhar Mishra Director and Manager
Mr. Sunil Kumar Shrivastava Director
Ms. Bina Bhatia Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Pradeep Tahiliani Company Secretary & Compliance officer

Summary of related party disclosures:

a) Disclosure of related party transactions: For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024   31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Loan received during the year

HCL Corporation Private Limited 20.00 12.00 

b) Outstanding balances as at year end As at As at 
31 March 2024   31 March 2023

(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Borrowings

HCL Corporation Private Limited 419.55 399.55 

17 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

(i) Fair values hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are divided into three 
Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the 
measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
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Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and liabilities, including their level in
the fair value hierarchy

Particulars March 31, 2024

Carrying amount Fair value

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
cost

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    11.41  -    -    -   

Total  -    -    11.41  -    -    -   

Financial liabilities not measuerd at fair value

Loan from related party  -    -    419.55  -    -    -   

Trade payables  -    -    1.50  -    -    -   

Total  -    -    421.05  -    -    -   

Particulars March 31, 2023

Carrying amount Fair value

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
cost

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    2.85  -    -    -   

Security deposits  -    -    3.38  -    -    -   

Total  -    -    6.23  -    -    -   

Financial liabilities not measuerd at fair value

Loan from related party  -    -    399.55  -    -    -   

Trade payables  -    -    0.55  -    -    -   

Total  -    -    400.10  -    -    -   

The company has not disclosed fair value financial instruments carried at amortised cost such as cash equivalents, security 
deposits and trade receivable because their carrying amount are reasonable approximates of fair value.

The company has not disclosed fair value financial instruments carried at amortised cost such as borrowings, trade 
payables because their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

18 Financial risk management

i) Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company’s board of directors has overall 
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. This note explains the 
sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial 
statements.

ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the company. The company is exposed to this risk 
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for various financial instruments, for example by granting loans and receivables to customers, placing deposits, etc. The 
company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of following types of financial assets. 

- cash and cash equivalents,
- loans & receivables carried at amortised cost, and
- deposits with banks”

Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system, continuously monitoring defaults of 
customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by the company, and incorporates this information into its 
credit risk controls. Internal credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics. The 
Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors 
specific to the class of financial assets.

A: Low

B: Medium

C: High

Assets under credit risk –

Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

A: Low Other financial assets  - 3.38

Cash and cash equivalents 11.41 2.85

Cash & cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and 
diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks.

iii) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding 
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due.

a) Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and 
undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

31 March 2024 On Less than 1-3 year 3-5 year More than Total
demand 1 year 5 years

Borrowings 419.55 - -  - - 419.55 

Trade payable - 1.50 - - - 1.50

Total 419.55 1.50 - - - 421.05

31 March 2023 On Less than 1-3 year 3-5 year More than Total
demand 1 year 5 years

Borrowings 399.55 - - - - 399.55 

Trade payable  - 0.55 - - - 0.55 

Total 399.55 0.55 - - - 400.10

iv) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will 
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk 
sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. 

The Company is not exposed to currency risk exposure as the Company does not have any foreign currency balances as on 
reporting dates.
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19 Capital management

The Company’s capital management objectives are

- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented 
on the face of balance sheet.

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while 
avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. The 
Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount 
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Debt equity ratio

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Total borrowings 419.55                            399.55 

Total equity  (410.91)                           (393.44)

Net debt to equity ratio*  - -

The Company has not declared dividend in current year or previous year.

*Owing to equity being negative, debt to equity ratio has been shown as nil.

20 The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been approved by the Board of 
Directors in its meeting held on May 27, 2024.

21 Ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current Previous % Variance Reason
Period Period for variance

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.03 0.01 264% The variance

is on account

of increase in

borrowing

during the

current year.

Debt -equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s -1.02 -1.02 1% NA

Equity

Debt service Earning Available Debt Service NA NA NA No Cash 

coverage ratio for Debt Service Profit

Return on equity ratio Net Profits after Average 4% 53% -92% The ratio has

taxes – Preference Shareholder’s changed due

Dividend (if any) Equity   to reduction 

in continuous

losses during

current year

Inventory turnover COGS or Sales Average Inventory - - 0% NA

ratio

Trade receivables Net Credit Sales Average Account - - 0% NA

turnover ratio Receivables

Trade payables Net Credit Average Account - - 0% NA

turnover ratio Purchases Payables

Net capital turnover Net Sales Working Capital - - 0% NA

ratio

Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales - - 0% NA
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Return on capital Earning before Capital Employed -2.02 -27.07 -93% The ratio 

employed interest and taxes has changed

due to

reduction

in losses

during 

current year

Return on Net Profit Average 4.34% 53.3% -92% The ratio has 
investment after Tax Shareholder’s changed due

Equity  to reduction
in continuous
losses during 
current year

22 Other Notes

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with 

Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. No layers of companies has been established beyond the 

limit prescribed as per above said section / rules.

(iii) No bank or financial institution has declared the company as “Willful defaulter”.

(iv) No transaction has been made with the company struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 

560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(v) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(vi) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or 

invest in party identifiedby or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any 

fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) There is no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts. None of undisclosed income is 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the period under Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii) Status of Charges beyond statutory period (borrowings)

The following charges are appearing on MCA Portal. As per the Management, all following charges were satisfied and 

requisite forms were filed with the Office of Registrar of Companies. The Company is in the process of getting the MCA 

Portal rectified for removal of below mentioned charges:

Charge Id Charge Holder Date of Creation/ Location of Registrar Amount in INR 

Name Modification

90335320 Canara Bank 16/09/1985 Delhi  3,33,395

90333962 Canara Bank 02/02/1985 Delhi  30,87,500

90335311 Canara Bank 28/06/1984 Delhi  6,90,600

90333939 Canara Bank 01/04/1981 Delhi  89,00,000 
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23 Figures for previous periods have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever necessary, to conform with the relevant 

current period’s classification.

For V Nagarajan & Co. For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants International Data Management Limited
Firm Registration No. 004879N

Pradeep Kumar Sunil Kumar Shrivastava Sashi Sekhar Mishra
Partner Director Manager & Director
Membership No 514068 DIN:00259961 DIN:03072330

Place: New Delhi Pradeep Tahiliani Bina Bhatia
Date: 27 May 2024 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Chief Financial Officer
UDIN : 24514068BKCAUI9648 Membership No.ACS18570 PAN:BDYPB0279A

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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